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Robert Geneslaw Co. 

 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS 
 
Robert Geneslaw, AICP 

 368 New Hempstead Rd. #320 
 New City,  NY  10956 
 OFFICE (845) 368-1785 
 FAX        (845)368-1787 

 
M E M O R A N D U M  

 
 
TO:  SUPERVISOR ANTHONY P. CELLINI AND  

MEMBERS OF THE TOWN BOARD 
TOWN OF THOMPSON 
  

FROM: ROBERT GENESLAW, AICP 
   
SUBJECT: EPT CONCORD DGEIS/DEIS SUBSTANTIVE REVIEW  
 
DATE:  SEPTEMBER 5,  2012 
 
C: MICHAEL MEDNICK, ESQ., TOWN ATTORNEY 
 PAULA E. KAY, ESQ., PLANNING BOARD ATTORNEY 

RICHARD MCGOEY, P.E., TOWN ENGINEER 
CHRISTINA DOUGLAS, P.E., PTOE, TOWN CONSULTING TRAFFIC 
ENGINEER 
STEVEN VEGLIANTE, ESQ. (FOR PROJECT SPONSOR) 
NANETTE BOURNE, AICP, (FOR PROJECT SPONSOR) 
CHRIS ROBBINS, (FOR PROJECT SPONSOR) 

 
 
A Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement and Draft Environmental Impact 
Statement (DGEIS/DEIS) has been received by the Town Board acting as Lead 
Agency for the proposed EPT Concord Resort project.  The DGEIS/DEIS has been 
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the NYS Environmental Quality Review 
Act (SEQRA).  The  DGEIS portion evaluates the impacts and mitigations of the entire 
proposal for the 1,538 +/- acre EPT owned property for a mix of uses with an 
anticipated 10 year build out (depending on market conditions), while the DEIS portion 
is directed towards the Phase 1 portion of the property and provides more specific 
impacts and mitigation.  The  Phase 1 site development is targeted to begin once 
approvals and permits have been received, potentially within the next 3-6 months. 
 
As planning and environmental consultants to the Town Board the purpose of this 
memorandum is to report the findings of our review of the DGEIS/DEIS with respect to 
meeting the procedural and substantive requirements of  SEQR, meeting the elements 
of the adopted scoping outline, identifying potential adverse environmental impacts, 
and providing mitigation to those impacts.  In addition to our review, other technical 

Correspondence: 027 1 of 3



EPT – Concord  DGEIS/DEIS Substantive Review               Robert Geneslaw Co.               P. 2 of 3               
Town of Thompson                                                                                                                                                     September 5, 2012  
     

consultants and legal advisors to the Town Board are participating and providing 
memoranda and advice to the Town Board. 
 
In our opinion the DGEIS/DEIS is comprehensive and meets the procedural 
requirements of SEQR.  While the substantive elements of the document are 
comprehensively treated, there are several areas that are discussed below.  In the 
course of reviewing a preliminary DGEIS/DEIS at the staff level, a number of items 
requesting additional information were identified by this office and other advisors to the 
Town Board.  Some of these items are addressed in the reviewed document and other 
items by agreement with project sponsor representatives and staff were deferred to the 
Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) or the Findings Statement because of the 
time needed to collect and evaluate additional information and alternatives.  A list of 
these open items is in preparation, should be part of the environmental record, and 
should be considered in the FEIS and/or Findings Statement. 
 
In our opinion, the DGEIS/DEIS is substantially consistent with the scoping outline.  
One exception would be items already requested by the traffic consultant to the Town 
(CHA).   
 
The DGEIS/DEIS is, appropriately, separated into a series of subject areas and within 
each subsection refer to the DGEIS/DEIS elements.  In reviewing the document it is 
important to  remember that the DGEIS addresses a more general, or generic,  plan, 
including a range of proposed uses and densities and concept graphics plans to 
evaluate impacts and identify potential mitigation.  Due to the 10 year build out and the 
potential for plan changes due to marketing experience, the analysis is at a generic 
level, and potential impacts and mitigation are identified/evaluated at a generic level, by 
phase.  As each phase is detailed, additional and more specific potential environmental 
impacts and identification will be made as necessary as part of the environmental 
review for the site plan or other approvals necessary for each phase.  These impacts 
and mitigation will take into account impacts from other projects, particularly with 
respect to traffic. 
 
The DEIS portions are directed toward Phase 1, the resort core, and a more detailed 
environmental analysis and identification of impacts and mitigation, and serve as the 
environmental basis for the review of the Phase 1 site plan.  The identified mitigation 
elements will be part of any site plan approval conditions, whether by plan notes, 
resolution conditions, Town Board actions, (special district extensions, for example), or 
other requirements/commitments.   
 
An important aspect of mitigation is that each mitigation element be achievable by the 
project sponsor.  For onsite impacts, there must be an acceptable engineering solution 
for each infrastructure and construction element with costs to be borne by the project 
sponsor.  For off-site elements necessitated as mitigation from project impacts, the 
mitigation must be achievable and deliverable by the project sponsor.  This means, for 
example, that if a permit is needed from an involved agency, there must have been 
sufficient contact between the Town as Lead Agency , project sponsor, and permitting 
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agency to establish that permit requirements can be met in a manner acceptable to the 
Town, agency, and project sponsor, even if issuance of a permit does not typically 
occur until after site plan or other local approvals.  The same concept could also apply 
to other elements , such as site control. 
 
A required element of SEQR is that a project proposal evaluate alternatives, which 
could include alternative sites, technologies, provision of alternative solutions for 
infrastructure elements such as water, sewer, access, circulation patterns, uses and 
their intensity, etc., so that the Lead Agency and project sponsor may be able to select 
alternatives that minimize impacts and provide sufficient mitigation.  For the DGEIS the 
mitigations are identified, but since project plans are at a conceptual stage potential 
mitigation elements are identified but not sufficiently  identified or designed that permits 
or other specific approvals can be sought.  For the DEIS, the mitigation elements must 
be achievable and deliverable by the project sponsor before completion of the SEQR 
process.  More than one solution for a particular element may be discussed in a 
Findings Statement, so long as each is achievable and deliverable by the project 
sponsor.  These are identified and discussed in the DEIS and include such on site and 
offsite infrastructure elements as water, sanitary sewers, road alignment, and 
intersection improvements.  
 
The following elements require resolution prior to completion of SEQR: 
 
Water supply – the ongoing evaluation of identified alternatives have been shown to be 
the Village of Monticello, Kiamesha Artesian Spring Water Co., and/or a series of 
individual wells for each phase, or some combination of these alternatives should be 
continued, so that a more definitive course of action may be made in the Final 
Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) and/or Findings Statement. 
 
Sanitary Sewer – the same approach as noted above should be further evaluated, for 
the same reasons as outlined above.  
 
Road Alignment  - the alternative to Joyland Road for primary access, Option A as 
discussed in the DGEIS/DEIS and referenced at the public hearing should be further 
evaluated with respect to: wetland impacts and jurisdictional agency permit 
requirements, property acquisition, reduced impact on existing Joyland Road 
properties, potential for impacting cultural resources, and concept plan road alignment 
at both ends. 
 
Workforce housing – this element is proposed for a future development phase.  The 
following elements should be discussed in the FEIS: 

1. How much employee housing is estimated to be needed?   
2. Are existing housing resources available in the interim? 
3. When will workforce housing be available? 
4. How will units be set aside for on-site employees? 
5. At the time that the development phase with workforce housing is proposed,  

an administrative and eligibility program will have to be established.  
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Peter Feroe <pferoe@akrf.com>

FW: Concord
1 message

Chris Robbins <crobbins@akrf.com> Fri, Sep 7, 2012 at 5:29 PM

See below for Lisa Masi's comments on the DGEIS/DEIS. 

-----Original Message-----
From: Lisa Masi [mailto:lmmasi@gw.dec.state.ny.us]
Sent: Friday, September 07, 2012 5:19 PM
To: Chris Robbins
Cc: Chad Seewagen; Andrea Sheeran
Subject: Concord

Hi Chris,
  I did get a chance to read through the DGEIS/DEIS sections on wetlands
and Natural resources.  I sent some comments on to Andrea, but from what
was conveyed at the meeting DEC was not planning on sending in other comments on
the DGEIS/DEIS.  The most significant question I had after reading through
the section was, were all vernal or woodland pools mapped for phase I or
any other sections of the development?  There is reference to some vernal
pools in the forest section of Phase I, but it is not clear if those were
mapped or not.

Otherwise I thought the document thoroughly discussed the potential
impacts of the development on wildlife.

I would recommend further avoidance of vernal and woodland pool and the
maintenance of adequate upland buffers and connections around such pools
and other wetlands.  The best management practices specified in Calhoun
and Klemens 2002 should be followed to preserve functional populations of
amphibians in the appropriate habitat on site.

Calhoun, A. J. K. and M. W. Klemens. 2002. Best development practices:
Conserving pool-breeding amphibians in residential and commercial
developments in the northeastern United States. MCA Technical Paper No. 5,
Metropolitan Conservation Alliance, Wildlife Conservation Society, Bronx,
New York.
http://www.umaine.edu/vernalpools/PDFs/Best%20Development%20Practices%20%2
0-%20%20Conserving%20Pool-breeding%20Amph.pdf

I would also recommend further limiting forest fragmentation and avoiding
the need to create new roads in the area.

I'm not sure if the comments I sent to Andrea will be transmitted
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separately to your office or the lead agency or not.

Lisa

Lisa Masi
Wildlife Biologist
Bureau of Wildlife
NYS DEC - Region 3 Headquarters
21 South Putt Corners Rd.
New Paltz, NY 12561
Phone: 845-256-2257
Fax: 845-255-4659
lmmasi@gw.dec.state.ny.us
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